
 

 
You can view the agenda on the website  
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code 

 
 

 
  

To: 
 
The Chair and Members 
of the Cabinet 
 

 

County Hall 
Topsham Road 
Exeter 
Devon  
EX2 4QD 
 

 

Date:  1 June 2021 Contact:  Karen Strahan, 01392 382264 

Email:  karen.strahan@devon.gov.uk 
 

CABINET 
 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
A meeting of the Cabinet is to be held on the above date at 10.30 am in the Council 
Chamber - County Hall to consider the following matters. 
 
 Phil Norrey 
 Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
 PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE 

 
1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Minutes  
 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2021 (previously circulated). 
 

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention  
 

 Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as 
matters of urgency. 
 

4 Announcements  
 

5 Petitions  
 

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy


6 Question(s) from Members of the Council  
 

 
 FRAMEWORK DECISION 

 
 NIL 

 
 

 KEY DECISIONS 
 

7 County Road Highway Maintenance - Capital Budget and Progress on 2020/21 
Schemes and Proposals for the 2021/22 Programmes and the On-street Parking 
Account 2021/22 (Pages 1 - 24) 

 

 Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste 
(HIW/21/28), attached.  
 

  Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions 
 

8 Bid into Government Levelling Up Fund (Pages 25 - 30) 
 

 Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/21/20), 
attached.  
 

  Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions 
 

 MATTERS REFERRED 
 

9 Notice of Motion (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

 The following Notice of Motion submitted to the County Council by Councillor 
Connett has been referred to the Cabinet in accordance with Standing Order 8(2) 
for consideration, to refer it to another Committee or make a recommendation 
back to the Council: 
 
Save Precious National Parks (Councillor Connett) 
 

  Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions 
 
 

 STANDING ITEMS 
 

10 Question(s) from Members of the Public  
 
 
 
 
 



11 Delegated Action/Urgent Matters  
 

 The Register of Decisions taken by Members under the urgency provisions or 
delegated powers is available on the website in line with the Council’s Constitution 
and Regulation 13 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.  The decisions taken and 
associated information can be found here.  
 

12 Forward Plan (Pages 35 - 44) 
 

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Cabinet is requested to review 
the list of forthcoming business (previously circulated) and to determine which 
items are to be defined as key and/or framework decisions and included in the 
Plan from the date of this meeting.  
 
The Forward Plan is available on the Council's website. 
 

 
 PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 

  
NIL 

 
 

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should 
therefore be treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any 
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the 
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal. 

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&DR=14%2f03%2f2020-28%2f03%2f2020&RP=0&K=0&DM=3&HD=0&DS=2&Next=true&META=mgdelegateddecisions&V=0
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0&bcr=1


MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS 
 
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors   
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD 
 
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor 
parking at County Hall and bus routes. 
 
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information 
see the Travel Devon webpages.  
 
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High 
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.  
 
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors 
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504 
beforehand.  
 
Membership of a Committee  
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page 
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.  
 
Committee Terms of Reference  
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on 
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee, 
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also 
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Access to Information 
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to 
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the 
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information 
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All 
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website  
 
Public Participation 
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public 
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of 
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public 
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting. 
 
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District 
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is 
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda 
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings 
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart 
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages  

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://www.traveldevon.info/cycle/
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver=4&info=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, 
as directed by the Chair.  Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and 
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed. 
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic 
Services Officer in attendance.  
 
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.  
 
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council  
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may 
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking 
place on that item. 
 
WiFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. 
 
Fire  
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available exit following the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green 
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use 
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the 
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park 
behind Bellair. 
 

First Aid 
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.  
 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council 
Chamber 
 
Alternative Formats 

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in 
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other 
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on 
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to 
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD. 
Induction Loop available  

 
 

mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk




HIW/21/28 
Cabinet 

9 June 2021 

 
County Road Highway Maintenance 
Capital Budget and Progress on 2020/21 Schemes and Proposals for the 
2021/22 Programmes and the On-street Parking Account 2021/22 
 

Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Cabinet (and confirmation under the provisions of the Council's 
Constitution) before taking effect. 

Recommendations: that:   
(a) progress on 2020/21 capital funded highway maintenance schemes detailed in 

Appendices II and III to this report is noted, 
(b) the capital funded highway maintenance programmes for 2021/22 as set out in 

Appendices IV and V is approved, 
(c) the Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste 2021/22 capital 

programme be enhanced by £11.691 million (as explained in section 3 of this 
report) funded by external grants, 

(d) detailed allocation of the available budget be determined by the Chief Officer 
for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Highway Management, on the basis of the Highways 
Infrastructure Asset Management Plan, and within the limits of the approved 
budget, 

(e) the programme funded from the On-street Parking Account for 2021/22 as set 
out in Appendix VI be approved. 

1. Summary 
 
This report deals with both capital funding and the On-street Parking Account (OSP) 
reviewing for the capital what was delivered in 2020/21 and the proposed 
programmes for 2021/22. 
 
Restoration or replacement of highway components which are dilapidated due to 
traffic loading, weather impacts or aging of assets is funded through capital 
investment. Sound capital investment in the highway network will ensure assets are 
kept structurally sound over its design life enabling officers to better plan future 
budget expenditure and mitigate the impact of unforeseen high cost revenue funded 
repairs. When investment is made at the right time, long term maintenance costs will 
be reduced. 
 
This report presents information on the progress of highway capital maintenance 
programmes and schemes delivered in 2020/21; and Section 7 of the report details 
the proposals for capital funding of highway maintenance schemes in 2021/22. 
 
Part of the 2021/22 funding awarded to Devon County Council (DCC) from central 
government included in this report, was approved by Full Council in February 2021. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 7



This report seeks approval from Cabinet to allocate the capital funding across the 
programmes and schemes proposed in 2021/22 as listed in appendices IV and V.  
The allocations include an anticipated brought forward of Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
monies from 2020/21 of £1,272,000, subject to approval of the revenue and capital 
outturn report, submitted to this Cabinet. 
 

The report also seeks approval from Cabinet for the programme of work identified in 
accordance with the provisions of Traffic Management Act 2004, to be funded from 
the On-street Parking Account as listed in appendix VI. 

2. Learning including Doing What Matters (DWM) 
 
The Service is performing well and can evidence this to central Government and 
consequently is receiving additional funding through the Incentive Fund as a Band 3 
authority. 
 
Our aim in relation to planned works is to increase the resilience of the Devon road 
network by selecting the most appropriate treatments and undertaking these works 
effectively. Through the DWM project and pilot testing in the West of Devon, 
principles have been developed that will assist us in doing this, recognising there are 
three distinct elements that come together to deliver planned works effectively. 
 
Machine-based condition data from surveys continues to be used to provide an 
objective view of the network and this data is complimented with the human touch 
through visual route inspections by our Neighbourhood teams. Both these elements 
confirm which roads and footpaths need attention and which then informs the next 
important process of seeking the views from the customer and community 
perspectives, through our parish and town councils. 
 
In sharing our advance programme and understanding what repairs would be of 
most value to communities a forward programme can be developed that is 
representative of technical and local need. It is interesting to note how consistent 
these different elements and views are when identifying suitable schemes for future 
programmes and where there are inconsistencies the valuable knowledge and 
discussion with communities about which roads are locally important provides a 
mechanism to reshape the programmes. The pilot work has demonstrated the 
importance of dialogue in being transparent on why certain works are promoted 
above others and has enabled forward programmes to be produced for the 
forthcoming years for each of our six Neighbourhood teams across the county. 
 
As these programmes emerge the next steps are to initiate further discussions by 
our local teams with parishes and town councils to agree the advance programmes 
with the intention to publish these programmes publicly on the council website. 
Future programmes of course are subject to change fundamentally because of the 
reliance upon funding which is uncertain over the medium to long term and the 
impacts from unforeseen situations. Never-the-less the benefits of an agreed 
prioritised programme will provide the basis for reprogramming works should 
resources or circumstances dictate. 
 

Page 2

Agenda Item 7

https://www.devon.gov.uk/roadsandtransport/live-roadworks-information/


In 2019 Devon declared a Climate and Ecological Emergency and through the 
Devon Climate Emergency Response Group (DCERG) there is the expectation to 
deliver on challenging targets within Devon’s new Carbon Plan. 
 
The service is collaborating with Exeter University in establishing a methodology that 
will help to reduce the carbon output when designing and commissioning 
maintenance and construction works. Carbon emissions calculations will take a 
‘cradle to grave’ approach – from sourcing primary materials through to their disposal 
at the end of a project’s life. 
 
The project will offer teams a mechanism to understand the average carbon output 
of a scheme, consider the most sustainable repair and utilise this knowledge when 
making engineering decisions. In 2021 the target is to further expand the number of 
activities being considered and to test the suitability of the impact assessment tool 
against several key activities. 

3. Capital Programme 
 
Financial Considerations and Sources of Funding for 2021/22 
 
In 2021/22 Highway Maintenance Block (HMB) funding is £29.346 million and 
consists of: 
 

 HMB funding LTP ‘Needs’ based formula is £23.477 million and is for 
maintaining and improving the network, based upon local knowledge, 
circumstances and priorities. This is a reduction in funding compared with 
2020/21 of 31%. 

 HMB funding ‘Incentive’ element allocation is £5.869 million and is a 
mechanism to enable an authority to receive additional funding over and 
above the ‘Needs’ based formula. This year saw a reduction in the band 3 
level of funding of 17% compared with the funding in 2020/21 for the same 
banding level. 

 
The Incentive fund and ‘Needs’ based formula allocations are shown in Table 1. 
 
In addition to the HMB funding is the 2021/2 Potholes Fund allocation of £23.477 
million for the fixing of potholes and the resurfacing of local roads. 
 
At the time of setting the capital programme for 2021/22, DfT allocations had not 
been announced. The budget was set at £41.132 million, based upon the 2020/21 
LTP settlement. In February, the DfT published local authority allocations which 
included the elements above and totalled £52.823 million. Recommendation (c) is 
therefore requesting the enhancement of the capital programme of £11.691 million.   
 
Further funding support was provided to the 2020/21 capital budget through financial 
provisions and carry over funding as follows. 
 

 In March 2020 the Department for Transport announced £650 million funding 
for the Potholes Fund from which Devon ‘s allocation was £28.869 million.  It 
was agreed at Cabinet in July 2020 that £7.7 million be allocated to 2021/22 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



from the Potholes Fund in order to smooth out the effect of any potential 
future budget reductions that may occur. 

 
This decision proved to be the correct action as we have seen a 28% 
reduction in LTP and Incentive Funding in 2021/22 as shown in Table 1. 

 

 
 

DCC LTP Needs Formula 
Allocation 

(announced in Dec 2014) 
(£) 

 
Self-

Assessment 
Ranking 
Band 3 

Highest Band 
(£) 

 
Self-

Assessment 
Ranking 
Band 2 
Medium 

Band 
(£) 

 
Self-

Assessment 
Ranking 
Band 1 

Lowest Band 
(£) 

2015/16 42,306,229 No funding No funding No funding 

2016/17 38,784,623    2,347,737 2,347,737* 2,112,964 

2017/18 37,610,754 3,521,606* 3,169,446 2,112,964 

2018/19 34,042,193 7,090,167* 4,963,117 2,127,050 

2019/20 34,042,193 7,090,167*  3,545,084 709,017 

2020/21 34,042,193 7,090,167*  2,127,050  

2021/22 23,477,000 5,869,000*   

 
Table 1 - DfT Needs Based and Incentive Formula Allocations (* awarded) 

 

 Due to the large capital programme in 2020/21 and the impact on the 
programme of the Covid-19 pandemic £1.272 million of 2020/21 LTP is 
expected to be brought forward  into 2021/22 (subject to approval of the 
revenue and capital outturn report submitted to this Cabinet). 
  

  £1.597 million from the continuation works on A380 improvement works that 
was supported by funding from the Department for Transport Challenge Fund 
awarded in June 2020 is expected to be brought forward subject to approval 
of the revenue and capital outturn report submitted to this Cabinet) 
 

 of £209,000 associated with ecological mitigation works for the Slapton Line 

works, is expected to be brought forward, subject to approval of the revenue 

and capital outturn report submitted to this Cabinet). 

 

 In support of the Authority’s Carbon Reduction Plan and to save revenue 
funding on energy, £8.7million was allocated to convert the remaining 45,000 
Street Lighting assets, which are principally in residential areas, to LED over a 
three-year period.  During the past year circa. 7,000 lights have been 
converted. £5.6 million funding remains, of which £4.77 million is estimated to 
be spent in 2021/22. 

  

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



 
Table 2 summarises the funding sources for 2021/22 as: 
 

LTP Needs Formula Allocation 2021/22 £23,477,000 

Incentive Funding (Band 3) £5,869,000 

Potholes Fund £23,477,000 

2020/21 Potholes Fund allocation profiled to 2021/22 7,700,000 

LTP/Potholes Fund b/f from 2020/21    £1,272,000 

A379 Slapton Line b/f grant from 2020/21 £209,000 

Challenge Fund b/f from 2020/21 £1,597,000 

Highways Lighting LED plus £860k b/f from 2020/21  £4,770,000 

Total  £68,371,000 

 
Table 2 – Funding Sources 

4. Road Condition and Strategy 
 
The condition of Devon’s road network has broadly remained stable for many years, 
a situation that is also reflected at a national level for most other local authority (LA) 
managed roads. 
 
Assessment of road surface condition of classified roads throughout the United 
Kingdom is provided using automated survey vehicles (SCANNER) and through 
visual surveys which ensure a consistent method of determining and comparing road 
condition across the UK network. The main measure of road condition is the Road 
Condition Indicator (RCI), this is made up of several parameters, such as cracking 
and rutting which combine to give an overall measure of the state of the road and an 
indication of surface condition. The underlying data can then be used along with 
other data to inform decisions about maintenance and future programmes. 
 
Under the Local Government Act, Local Authorities (LA) are required to provide, over 
a two-year cycle, data to the Department for Transport (DfT) on the conditions of 
their ‘A’, ‘B’ and ‘C’ roads. In addition, because the percentage of unclassified roads 
make up more than 52% of the total road network in Devon, we also measure the 
road condition of this important part of the network, and this survey is undertaken 
over a three-year cycle. 
 
Based on the RCI data, sections of road are split into 3 categories (red, amber, 
green) representing the general condition of that piece of highway with red being the 
worst condition and green carriageways in a good state of repair. 
 
The roads categorised in a ‘red’ condition indicate poor overall condition and are 
roads likely to require major maintenance soon, some possibly immediately. If left 
untreated the cost of maintaining these roads increase significantly the longer they 
are left. Those roads within an ‘amber’ condition are roads that are in a reasonable 
condition but have some apparent deterioration requiring further investigation to 
determine the optimum timing for planned maintenance. Often intervention 
maintenance on these roads will extend the life of the road at a considerably reduced 
cost than if the section of road was allowed to deteriorate to a ‘red’ condition 
category where more extensive and major works will be necessary.    

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Road Network 
 
Figure 2 shows the proportion of classified and unclassified roads across the 
network. 
 
Almost every journey begins and ends on local roads and is of critical importance in 
connecting people and driving economic growth and should be treated as an 
important national asset and it must be managed appropriately. Individuals, families, 
and communities depend on their local road network and it acts as the key arterial 
system that drives economic growth in our villages, towns, and cities. In Devon 
Unclassified roads combined with ‘C’ roads make up 87% of Devon's total road 
network. 
 

 
 

Fig 1 - Devon’s Road Length by Road Class 

5. Road Statistics and Analysis 
 
Devon’s has a commitment under our LTP key objectives to maintain the ‘A’ and ‘B’ 
class road network to a minimum condition of below 4% in the red national indicator 
band. This commitment absorbs a significant part of the funding streams with the 
remaining budget spread across Devon’s significant remaining road network of ‘C’ 
and unclassified roads.  
 
Reviewing the 2020 survey data for Devon, the percentage of roads categorised in 
red condition was: 
 

 ‘A’ road’s 3% 

 ‘B’ road’s 3% 

 ‘C’ road’s 15% 

 Unclassified road’s 16% 
 
Appendix I, Figures 1 to 4 incl. provides a summary of Devon’s (RCI) road condition 
indicator data in a graphical form over time by road classification using the national 
indicator bands. 
 
Recent asset modelling estimates that to fix the most deteriorated roads requiring 
maintenance now would cost the authority over £167.2 million and to maintain the 
road network as it is, steady state, would require an annual investment of more than 
£50 million. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



 
For many years funding restrictions has seen a growing reliance on preventative and 
short-term less expensive treatments, however such treatments, although providing 
an excellent short to mid-life solution, cannot be used indefinitely. At some point 
more robust treatments are required to avoid the repetitive cycle of pothole repairs 
and with Devon’s road network being predominantly rural and on some minor roads 
structurally poor a high proportion of the network is more vulnerable and susceptible 
to the formation and propagation of potholes. 
 
Under previous funding modes and excluding substantial outside influences such as, 
increasing population, daily traffic flows, global warming, and increased severe 
weather events, we have generally managed to keep pace with the decline, although 
this is proving more challenging each year. 
 
This trend will remain the case until substantial and continued investment to add life 
and resilience to the network is made available, such investment will allow Devon to 
carry out the required structural carriageway repair and rebuild necessary to improve 
overall road condition. This would ensure future works could then keep pace with 
normal wear and tear and deterioration. 
 
The most recent calculation for gross replacement cost for all assets across the 
network is valued at £13.3 billion. Of all the assets, carriageways form by far the 
greatest proportion by value (83%) with a gross replacement cost of £11.1 billion. In 
general inflation has remained relatively stable nationally and this is reflected in the 
accumulated depreciation of our highway assets over recent years which currently 
remains at around 14%. 
 
Over recent years increased capital provision has enabled the service to focus this 
funding on specific and essential parts of the major and minor road parts of the 
network. Minor roads making up 88% of our total road network means the additional 
funding has had to focus on all but the most essential roads meaning other minor 
roads are having to wait longer for more extensive planned works and in the interim 
kept functional through timely safety repair works. 
 
The DWM’s approach is enabling teams to focus on those roads that are most 
essential to the communities and less dependent upon data led scheme 
identification. Over time this will ensure resource is prioritised to those parts of the 
network which are the most important to the locality user. With this change in 
approach and focus the expectation is we will see further improvements across the 
whole network and more specifically on the local roads. 
 
Although Devon’s overall bridge stock remains classed as “good” and continues to 
be placed in the top three of LA’s in the UK for bridge condition the large size of 
Devon’s bridge asset still means there are over 800 bridges classed as either of ‘fair’ 
or ‘poor’ condition. With ‘good’ condition rating representing a low risk to public 
safety conversely a ‘poor’ condition rating indicates a significant risk to public safety 
and to mitigate this level of risk locations have to be managed by weight restriction 
signs, physical measures, monitoring or strengthening. 
 
Recent programmes of work are showing the average condition of the retaining wall 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



stock is improving due to the larger proportion of the BAS budget being allocated to 
the maintenance of this asset type. 

6. Capital Highway Maintenance Programme: 2020/21 
 
Progress on the 2020/21 Highway Structural Maintenance Programme is shown in 
Appendix II of this report and the 2020/21 Bridges Assessment and Strengthening 
Programme can be found in Appendix III, further area specific scheme specific 
programmes can be provided. 
 
Last year was an exceptional year with the additional challenges and restrictions 
imposed upon society by the pandemic. Adding to these challenges are the personal 
challenges that staff have had to endure over the past 12 months but delivery of the 
service has still been met through the remarkable efforts of our officers, a 
collaborative approach with our supply chain partners and effective and collective 
communication procedures that ensured, as far as restrictions permitted, the delivery 
of a normal maintenance service. This collaborative approach enabled an 
acceleration of the programme which although not delivered in full in 2020/21 still 
resulted in the delivery of the largest ever capital programme. 
 
The Bridges & Structures budget for financial year 2020/2021 was the largest budget 
to date with several major embankment stabilisation schemes adding to the bridges 
and retaining wall maintenance, inspection, and assessment activities. 
 
In 2020/21 a total of 152 bridge and structures projects were included in the annual 
programme for design, inspection or works. The number of landslides and 
embankment failures has increased in recent years and the Bridge Assessment 
budget has been under increasing pressures year on year to cover this unplanned 
engineering work. In instances where embankment failures and slippages occur 
affecting highway stability issues the funding for this work will be provided through 
the HSM budget. 
 
Traffic signals have been upgraded at 31 locations over the past year which both 
improves the safety of the asset and by use of extra-low voltage and LED signal 
heads reduces the energy consumption. 

7. Capital Highways Maintenance Programme: 2021/22 
 
The 2021/22 total allocation is expected to be £68,371,000 (subject to the carry 
forward requests, being approved as part of the revenue and capital outturn report 
being considered by Cabinet 09/06/21) with a breakdown of the respective 
programme elements included in Appendix lV and V.  It is proposed to allocate the 
funding as follows: 
 

Highway Structural Maintenance £58,624,000 

Bridge and Structures Programme £9,747,000 

  

Total £68,371,000 

 
Table 3 – Programme Allocation 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



 
In 2021/22 our principal term contractor, has changed from Skanska to Milestone 
Infrastructure Ltd (MI) a subsidiary company of M Group Services. The novation of 
the term contract over to MI was completed in April and the expectation is there will 
be no noticeable change in the delivery of the services formerly provided by 
Skanska. 
 
In addition to the Term Maintenance Contract (TMC), there are several other 
contracts in place that deliver other significant elements of the capital programme. 
The Framework contract focuses largely on the delivery of a proportion of the 
surfacing and patching works with separate contracts also let for the delivery of 
specialist works such as high friction surfacing and road restraint systems. 
 
Key elements include: 
 
Highway Structural Maintenance (HSM): Principal Roads (A class roads) 
 
Although overall condition on principal roads has remained steady over the last 12 
months the level of amber state at 30% is an indicator that deterioration is building 
on this part of the network and action is needed to arrest the decline. To ensure we 
retain principal roads at less than 4% ‘red‘ condition this budget line has been 
retained at £6,760,000 for carriageway resurfacing and patching. It will ensure those 
roads which need immediate attention are treated whilst also optimising the 
treatment for planned maintenance on those 30% of roads which are beginning to 
show signs of deterioration. 
 
Skid Resistance Treatment (SCRIM) 
 
Skidding resistance surveys (SCRIM Surveys) are undertaken by local authorities 
and Highways England. They provide a measure of the road surface contribution to 
the frictional forces developed between a vehicle’s tyres and the road when 
accelerating, braking or cornering. Skidding resistance figures do not necessarily 
reflect safety levels on the network but rather sites where further investigation is 
required. 
 
Devon limits routine annual SCRIM surveys to the principal road network only as it is 
considered neither affordable nor practicable for all roads on the highway network to 
be surveyed for skid resistance. The remaining untested network is covered under 
the strategy in the Annual Wet and Dry Collision Review, other roads identified as 
requiring further investigation are also be included in the programme of assessment. 
 
It is not possible to treat all parts of the principal road network that are currently 
below the current standard therefore the work is prioritised and limited to potentially 
high-risk sites with a history of collisions. This includes sites with a reported skidding 
resistance deficiency and a history of collisions on wet surfaces, others with a high 
deficiency (greater than or equal to 0.15) and collisions on dry surfaces. 
 
The allocation for SCRIM deficient sites is £2,111,000. 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 
HSM Non-Principal Roads 
 
Key elements include: 
 

 As we move to working in a different way with greater emphasis placed on 
local involvement into scheme selection large elements of budgets are being 
devolved out to the locality areas. 2021/22 is seen as a transition year to 
facilitate this new way of working and to prepare the locality areas in 
developing their local programmes. For this year each Locality Area is 
provided with a budget of £900,000 to deliver a programme of works that in 
the main will focus on patching and surfacing type works across the non-
principal network within their respective areas, but also dealing with 
associated problems such as drainage. 
 

 A central budget of £3,000,000 will remain for this year only to facilitate the 
delivery of any schemes remaining from the existing Non-Principal Roads 
Programme. This will support the strategic pledge on the condition of the 'B' 
roads and to help prioritise repairs to the more minor network identified 
through condition data, local knowledge and validated through visual 
assessment. 
 

 £7,500,000 for surface dressing and micro-asphalt to roads prepared in 
2020/21. 
 

 £4,000,000 has been allocated for pre-patching works for preparatory 
treatment ahead of the 2022/23 Preventative Programme to enable scheme 
issues to be addressed through the local teams. 
 

 £3,920,000 is allocated for Highway Improvements Hand Patching for 
localised issues, identified as serviceability issues from staff and the public. 
 

 £2,200,000 has been allocated to operate four ‘Dragon Patchers’ located 
strategically around the county which provide an effective and efficient 
additional option for the repair of small to medium size patches on selected 
parts of the network. 

 

Footways 
 
Footway schemes include a combination of upgrading of slabbed footways, 
resurfacing and intervention treatments to restore condition of footway surfaces and 
the allocation is £1.25 million 
 
It is proposed to target part of the footway budget to replacing and upgrading 
damaged slab footways in urban areas which consistently generate a significant 
level of customer feedback regarding defective or uneven slabs. To improve the life 
of footway surfaces consideration will also be given to replacing, in consultation with 
local members and communities, existing slabbed footways with alternative more 
resilient flexible surfacing material. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Slurry sealing is recognised as a cost-effective intervention treatment for efficiently 
restoring the performance of worn and tired footway surfaces. Within this allocation 
and subject to final tender submissions, £500,000 has been set-aside for the 
2021/22 footway slurry sealing programme. 
 
Drainage 
 
A £1,500,000 programme of drainage repair and upgrading is planned and is 
prioritised towards drainage issues on the winter salting network and other major 
roads in the first instance as well as schemes to protect damage to property. 
 
Road Restraint Systems 
 
£1,000,000 has been allocated to continue with the upgrading and replacement of 
road restraint systems. All high-risk sites identified in the original strategy have been 
inspected and upgraded where required, along with lower category roads and sites 
protecting structures and at overbridge locations adjacent to other major routes. The 
strategy has been reviewed and now includes other sites on the network which may 
have safety barrier protecting structures in central reservations and along other 
major routes. 
 
Road Weather Stations 
 
An ongoing programme valued at £100,000 per annum is being undertaken to 
upgrade Road Weather Stations that are used to inform winter decision makers on 
the appropriate response necessary to deal with various winter service scenarios. 
Replacing these stations and upgrading their communication will provide greater 
resilience to managing winter service and severe weather events over the next 
decade. 
 
Highway Lighting Column Upgrades and LED Replacement 
 
8% of street lighting columns are over 40 years old, and a significant proportion of 
younger columns have been identified with specific failure modes that need to be 
checked. In response to this £1,500,000 has currently been made available annually 
to facilitate a continuing programme of column replacement, to mitigate the liability 
that this represents. 
 
The on-going street lighting programme to upgrade all lights to LED continues into 
2021/22, with a budget of £4,770,000, all remaining lanterns are planned to be 
upgraded over the next 18 months.  
 
Traffic Signal Replacements 
 
The traffic signal upgrade programme continues over the coming year with 
£1.4million being invested at 30 locations. Over the forthcoming year the Traffic 
Signal Maintenance Contract will be re-tendered in collaboration with Torbay and 
Plymouth Councils. 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 
Bridges and Structures 
 
Whilst there hasn’t been a national survey for some years it can be assumed the 
condition of Devon’s bridge stock is still ranked 3rd in the UK out of 203 Local 
Authorities. However, the RAC Foundation continues to report that Devon has the 
largest number of substandard bridges in the UK at 249 although when considered in 
context with the total bridge stock in Devon, this is not a cause for concern, for three 
reasons: 
 

1. Devon has the largest stock of Local Authority bridges in the UK by a 
significant amount and the 249 substandard bridges represent only 6% of the 
total stock. 
 

2. A significant proportion of the 249 bridges are in fact ancient ‘clapper’ bridges 
on Dartmoor and although we cannot prove the full load carrying capacity of 
these ancient bridges they continue to do so without any signs of distress. 
These bridges will not be strengthened nor will have weight limits imposed 
upon them. 

 
There is a proposal to load test these structures to reduce the number of 
bridges classed as sub-standard however as the highway users are not being 
adversely affected and are generally unaware that a structure is sub-standard 
the priority for this work is low. 

 
3. There are many bridges in Devon with weight limits that are appropriate for 

the location they are in, they do not cause transportation difficulties nor limit 
access for users consequently there are no plans to remove the weight limits 
on these structures. 

 
The Bridge and Structures maintenance allocation for 2021/22 is £9.747 million.  
The programme for 2021/22 will continue with further strengthening projects to 
improve the resilience of the network.  The ongoing programme of inspections and 
major examinations will continue to ensure the risk of failure of an asset is kept to an 
acceptable and manageable level. The safeguarding of the public by modifying 
fencing on high bridges is programmed for completion in 2021/22. 
 
Storm Damage (resilience contingency) 
 
In line with DfT requirements for highway authorities to make provision within their 
funding allocation, a resilience contingency reserve of £250,000 has been 
incorporated within the programme should storm damage be experienced during the 
year. 
 

Cycleway and PROW Network 

 

The pandemic and 3 phases of lockdown in 2020/21 has seen an increased volume 
in the number of people using both our cycle routes and PROW. This is good news 
in terms of public health and the wellbeing of society, but the impact of increased 
footfall and cycling means an increase in maintenance. Additional funding has been 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



invested into these budget areas to ensure these amenity and sustainable transport 
assets continue to be maintained to a safe and usable condition. 

8. Options and Alternatives 
 
The current approach to scheme selection uses a preventative regime based upon 
need and sound asset management principles that optimises the use of available 
funding to reduce whole life maintenance costs. An alternative to this preventative 
regime would be to repair roads on a 'worst first' basis by focusing maintenance on 
the sections of road in the poorest condition.  
 
Experience and learning gained from working differently under the Doing What 
Matters (DWM) umbrella has demonstrated that a combination of both traditional 
approaches combined with greater influence and input from a community 
perspective offers a more transparent service. Through greater local involvement it 
offers a more robust and pragmatic focus on scheme selection by ensuring those 
locally identified important roads are ‘fit for purpose’. 2020/21 is the transition year in 
preparing the Asset and Neighbourhood Teams for adopting a countywide Locality 
Team approach in 2022/23. 
 
It is important however to note that any departure from our asset management 
approach as defined in the HIAMP could adversely affect future financial settlements 
from the DfT who see the use of sound asset management principles as 
fundamental in delivering cost effective maintenance solutions. It is therefore 
essential that developments within the plan continue to incorporate and amalgamate 
these and other principles within the assessment of its works programmes as the 
DfT have clearly said they will take this into account in future submissions for 
funding. 

9. On-Street Parking Account 
 
The expenditure of on-street parking income is restricted by the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. The costs of operating the on-street parking service is the first 
call on the income held in the On-street Parking Account. Any remaining surplus 
must then be used in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out in Section 55 of 
the Act, with surpluses used for: 
 

 The provision or operation of public transport services 

 The provision of facilities for public transport services 

 Highway or road improvement projects 

 Environmental improvements 
 
The 2021/22 Highways Maintenance budget includes £1.7M for highways cyclic 
revenue maintenance works, which are funded from the On-street Parking account. 
Full details of the proposed On-street Parking Account non-operating expenditure for 
2021/22, totalling £4.48M, are shown in Appendix VII. 
 
The estimated balance of the account is now expected to reduce from £2.38M at 31 
March 2021 to £1.84M by 31 March 2022. Expenditure charged to the On-Street 
Parking Account is regularly reviewed in order to ensure the fund is used effectively. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 
Traffic Management Plans 
 
There continues to be a high demand from communities for the review and 
implementation of parking restrictions. Larger schemes looking at community wide 
changes (including measures such as residents parking) are served via the £25k 
Traffic Management Plans budget in the On-street Parking account. 
 
The current level of demand means that the 2021/22 programme is filled with 
existing commitments, and a full programme of works has been developed by the 
Traffic Management Team with regular updates shared with Members. 
 
Due to the high level of demand it is proposed that new requests are prioritised on 
the basis of traffic management need, sustainability, and community support for 
inclusion in future programmes to ensure resource and monies are used to best 
effect. To ensure sustainability, schemes should be substantially self-financing, 
including components of residents parking and / or pay & display, in line with our 
policy on new residents parking schemes. 
 
Full details of the proposed On-street Parking Account non-operating expenditure for 
2021/22, totalling £4,480,000, are shown in Appendix VI. 

10. Consultations 
 
The results of the 2020 National Highways and Transport (NHT) Public Satisfaction 
Survey reflect public perception of performance, importance and the desire for 
various activities to be funded. Analysis shows that the condition of the highway 
network and the speed and quality of repairs are important to the public. 
 
A summary of the NHT highway maintenance benchmarking indicator results 
illustrating public satisfaction levels and importance in the services delivered show 
Devon to be above the average against other regional and peer group authorities. 
 
The summary of the survey undertaken in the autumn of 2020 gives overall a 
comforting position and shows no significant change to the previous year’s survey 
however it did highlight areas in highway condition where the public are showing a 
satisfaction level slightly under the national average. This confirmed the concerns 
raised in last year’s report that the impact on the network condition because of the 
storms that battered the region in early 2020 could impact upon public opinion. 

11. Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change) 
 
The ability to efficiently transport people and goods around the County underpins 
Devon's economy and has a direct impact on the quality of our environment. When 
maintenance work is undertaken it is managed to ensure that the effect on the 
surrounding environment is kept to a minimum. 
 
On carriageways and footways, surface treatment and reconstruction works are 
tightly controlled to achieve long term durability. Devon continues to use recycled 
materials within their hot mix materials and further trials are underway to further 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



improve asphalt durability through the addition of materials such as lime, rubber 
crumb and graphene. Whenever possible the use of recycled materials and 
secondary aggregates are encouraged and now with over 70% of resurfacing 
schemes using carbon efficient warm asphalts Devon is by example leading in its 
efforts in meeting its carbon neutral target by 2030. 
 
Prior to installation these materials are subjected to rigorous testing to ensure their 
suitability within the construction and how its use impacts on the environment. All 
construction contracts also include for recycling plans to ensure that the use of 
natural resources is reduced where recycled alternatives exist. 
 
As part of the Devon County Council’s drive to become carbon neutral by 2030 we 
are continuing the journey to establish average carbon intensity for various key work 
activities using the Carbon Impact Assessment Tool. In 2021 following a period of 
testing using the tool it is intended to go live on several key activities where carbon 
usage is high. These figures will then be used to establish the potential for utilising 
different treatments or to drive through procedures and processes that will reduce 
our carbon usage. 
 
It is now estimated that the authority has saved over £2m on energy over the past 
year since it embarked on the switch to energy efficient LED from 2014 within the 
street lighting asset. The remaining lanterns are planned to be upgraded to LED over 
the next 18 months with a continuing programme of column replacements. The 
contractor has also committed to, and are progressing towards, zero waste to landfill 
by 2022 and being carbon neutral by 2030. 
 
Once the Street Lighting programme to upgrade all lights to LED is complete, Devon 
County Council will have reduced the carbon emissions generated by its 
streetlighting by 75%, reducing carbon emissions by more than 15,000 tonnes each 
year, the equivalent of taking 8,000 cars off the road. 
 
Within the traffic signals asset, the use of extra-low voltage and LED signal heads 
has reduced the energy consumption by 28% since 2015. 

12. Equality Considerations 
 
Where relevant to the decision, the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty 
requires decision makers to give due regard to the need to:  

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct. 

 advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 
account of disabilities and meeting people's needs and 

 foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 
understanding. 

 
Taking account of age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), 
gender and gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant 
women/new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage/civil partnership status in coming 
to a decision, a decision maker may also consider other relevant factors such as 
caring responsibilities, rural isolation or socio-economic disadvantage. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 
This may be achieved, for example, through completing a full Equality Impact Needs 
Assessment/Impact Assessment or other form of options/project management 
appraisal that achieves the same objective. 
 
An impact assessment of the Council Budget 2021 to 2022 was submitted to the 
Council’s budget meeting on 18 February 2021 and has been taken into account in 
preparing this report.  

13. Legal Considerations 
 
The lawful consequences of the recommendations have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. 
 
With the condition of parts of the network there is likely to be an increase in user 
dissatisfaction and complaints which could lead to an increase of challenges to the 
Authority under Section 56 of the Highways Act. 

14. Risk Management Considerations 
 
The proposals contained in this report have been assessed and all reasonable 
actions are taken to safeguard the Council's position. Inability to undertake enough 
planned and general preventative maintenance work will result in an increased 
depreciation to the highways asset. This will lead to increased deterioration and 
defects and consequently, increased repair costs with potential for claims, which will 
put pressure on revenue and staffing budgets. 
 
Where risks have been identified which could disrupt the capital programme by 
causing higher than anticipated costs or delays, such as those associated with cost, 
inflation, Covid-19 or inclement weather, the implications have been accounted for in 
preparing this report. This includes developing long term programmes and the 
provision for reasonable contingencies in the estimates for capital highway and 
bridge maintenance schemes. 

15. Public Health Impact 
 
The cumulative reduction in budgets could have an impact on public health with 
reduced maintenance effecting sustainable travel alternatives, and potentially more 
injuries resulting from crashes, trips and falls, however the recommended approach 
limits this risk, by targeting investment. 

16. Reasons for Recommendations and Conclusion 
 
It is important to report to Cabinet on the performance of the highway network. 
 
The DfT capital settlement for 2021/22 provides funding for capital maintenance of 
highway assets and this report sets out proposed programmes to optimise their 
availability and safe use for the travelling public. Approval of schemes and 
programmes of highway maintenance will enable the delivery of the 2021/22 plan to 
commence. 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

https://www.devon.gov.uk/impact/budget21-22/


The report alerts Members to the fact that Government provides insufficient capital 
funding to meet all network maintenance needs. However, the proposed programme 
is designed to make best use of the available financial resources using the Cabinet 
endorsed Asset Management approach. 
 
Meg Booth 
Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste 
 
Electoral Divisions:  All 
 
Cabinet Member for Highway Management:  Councillor Stuart Hughes 
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers 
 
Contact for enquiries:  Paul Davis 
 
Room No.  County Hall, Exeter.  EX2 4QD 
 
Tel No:  (01392) 383000 
 
Background Paper  Date   File Reference 
 
Nil 
 
County Road Highway Maintenance Capital Budget 202021 Schemes and 202122 
Programmes and On-street Parking Account 202122 - Final 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Appendix I to HIW/21/28 
 

Road Condition Indicator (RCI) by Year 
 

 
 

Figure 1 
 

 
 

Figure 2 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Appendix I to HIW/21/28 continued 
 

Road Condition Indicator (RCI) by Year (continued) 
 

 
 

Figure 3 
 

 
 

Figure 4 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Appendix II to HIW/21/28 
 

Highway Structural Maintenance Programme 2020/21 
 

Function Actual  
£000’s  

Principal Roads   
A Roads  8,554 
A380 Teign Viaduct to Ashcombe Cross 3,403 
A379 Slapton Line  4 
SCRIM Remedial Works 1,179 
Preventative Programme 20 
   
Non-Principal Roads   
DWM Trial Areas 786 
Non-Principal Road Recovery Programme 11,263 
Pre-Patching for 21/22 Preventative 
Programme 

8,180 

Pre-Patching 2022/23 Preventative 
Programme 

1,856 

Pre Surface Dressing Cleaning 580 
Pre Surface Dressing Design 491 
Highway Improvements Triage Patching 4,794 
Pothole Action Fund 2020/21  2,644 
Dragon Patcher 1,525 
Joint Sealing 241 
Wet/Dry Collision Sites 143 
High Skid Resistance Surfacing Programme 1,036 
Carriageway Condition Surveys 293 
Material Testing 292 
Scheme Delivery Group 816 
Footways 1,437 
Cycleway, PROW & Unsurfaced Roads  1,422 
Road Restraint Systems Upgrade Strategy 771 
Drainage  1,605 
Cattle Grid Structural Repairs 107 
Extreme Weather Resilience Contingency 408 
Road Weather Station Renewal Programme 125 
Highway Lighting Column Upgrades  1,072 
Highway Lighting LED replacement 1,749 
Traffic Signal Replacements  1,235 
Highway Vehicles 40 
NOCC Improvements CCTV Upgrade 313 
Depots 329 
Minor Traffic Management Improvements 348 
  
HSM Programme Total  59,061 
Allocation 62,612 
C/F All Funding Sources 3,551 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



Appendix III to HIW/21/28 
 

Bridge Assessment and Strengthening Programme 2020/21 
 

Function 
Actual 
£000’s 

  
Bridge Strengthening 611 

Forward Design 471 

Retaining Wall Strengthening 2,784 

Major Refurbishment 106 

Minor Refurbishment 1,397 
Joints and Bearings 60 

Sub-Standard Parapets 56 
Bridge Safeguarding 893 

Bridge Assessments 339 

Principal Inspections 728 

Scour Assessments / Protection 185 

Post Tensioned Special Inspections 167 

Low Head Room Signage 210 

Management of Sub-standard Structures 18 

Highway Stabilisation Works 1,310 

Rockface Management 464 

  

Total BAS Programme 9,799 

BAS Allocation 2020/21 11,046 

LTP c/f to 2021/22 1,247 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Appendix IV to HIW/21/28 
 

Highway Structural Maintenance Programme 2021/22 
 

Function Budget 
£000’s  

Principal Roads   
A Roads  6,760 
A380 Teign Viaduct to Ashcombe Cross 1,597 
A379 Slapton Line                    209 
SCRIM Remedial Works 2,111 

   
Non-Principal Roads  
NPRRP 3,000 
Preventative Programme 2021/22  7,500 
Pre-Patching for Preventative Programme 2022/23  4,000 
  
All Roads  
DWM Hatherleigh & Chagford ED 550 
DWM Torrington Rural ED 450 
DWM Broadclyst ED 350 
DWM NHT Schemes Programme (£900K each per 6 Locality Areas) 5,400 
DWM NHT Drainage Forward Design and Investigation 400 
HFS 400 
Road Restraint Systems  1,000 
Wet/Dry Collision Sites 100 
Carriageway Condition Surveys 350 
Depots 627 
Resilience Contingency 250 
Scheme Delivery Group 750 
Joint Sealing 200 
Scheme Design Surface Dressing 500 
Investigation and Testing (Materials Laboratory) 250 
Footways 1,250 
Drainage  1,500 

Cattle Grid Structural Repairs 80 

Dragon Patcher  2,200 

Highway Improvements Hand Patching  3,920 
Cycleway, PROW & Unsurfaced Roads  1,750 
Road Weather Station Renewal Programme 100 
NOCC Improvements CCTV Upgrade 100 
Highways Lighting Column Upgrades  1,500 
Highways Lighting LED 4,770 
Traffic Signal Replacements  1,400 
Fixed Contract Overhead Charge  2,850 
Minor Traffic Management Improvements 450 
  

HSM Programme Total 2021/22  58,624 

  

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



Appendix V to HIW/21/28 
 

Bridge and Structures (BAS) Capital Maintenance Programme 2021/22 
 
 

Function 
Estimate 

£000’s 

  
Bridge Strengthening 1,948 

Retaining Wall Strengthening 3,071 

Major Refurbishment 1,208 

Minor Refurbishment EDG 1,365 

Minor Refurbishment NHT 50 
Joints and Bearings 350 

Sub-Standard Parapets 334 
Bridge Safeguarding 31 

Bridge Assessments  252 

Principal Inspections Bridges 301 

Principal Inspections Retaining Walls 115 

Scour Assessments / Protection 170 

Post Tensioned Special Inspections 337 

Low Head Room Signage 162 

Management of Sub-standard Structures 17 

Rockface Management 36 

  

Total BAS Programme 2021/22 9,747 

  
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Appendix VI to HIW/21/28 
 

On-street Parking Account (OSP) 2021/22 
 
 

Function Narrative 
2021/22 Budget 

Allocation  
£000’s  

Transport Co-ordination Service: Bus, Rail, and Community 
Transport Support 2,115 

Civil Parking Enforcement road signs & road markings 225 

Traffic Management Plans 25 

Cyclical Maintenance for the purposes of Environmental 
Improvement 

1,700 

Traffic and Parking IT Systems 30 

Safety Camera Partnership 10 

Real Time passenger information 25 

Variable Message Signs  10 

Road Safety Improvements - Reactive 50 

Park & Ride business rates / minor site maintenance 71 

Country Parks 219 

Total Other Expenditure 4,480 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



PTE/21/20 
Cabinet 

9 June 2021 
 

Bid into Government Levelling Up Fund 
 
Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Cabinet (and confirmation under the provisions of the Council’s 
Constitution) before taking effect. 

Recommendation: that the Cabinet be asked; 
(a) to give approval for the Council to work with the District Councils to submit bids 

to the Government’s “Levelling Up Fund” (LUF) in June 2021, for the following 
schemes: 

i. Okehampton - new rail station & transport hub 
ii. Cullompton - Town Centre Relief Road 
iii. Exmouth - Completion of Dinan Way and Town Centre improvements 
iv. Teign Estuary Trail and associated cycle links 
v. Lee Mill - Slip road and associated local improvements  

(b) to approve the Levelling Up Fund bids be submitted with a total estimated cost 
of £92m incorporating a contribution of up to £5.7m from Devon County 
Council; 

(c) to agree where approval is granted to enter into any funding agreements 
required to secure the funding or any part of it, authority is delegated to the 
Head of Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment, to negotiate and 
enter into those agreements; 

(d) that delegated approval be given to the Head of Planning, Transportation and 
Environment, in consultation with the Local Member and Cabinet Member for 
Climate Change, Environment and Transport, to make minor amendments to 
the bid submissions. 

1. Summary 
 
The Department for Transport, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and the Treasury are planning to invest £4.8 billion in high- value local 
infrastructure. It is especially intended to support investment in places where it can 
make the biggest difference to everyday life. The Levelling Up Fund (LUF) is to be 
distributed as a capital grant, as part of this government’s broader offer to level up 
opportunity across the UK. 
 
Working with the key stakeholders a programme of schemes has been identified 
which cover a range of transport modes and spread the bids over a wide geography 
covering a number of key Market Towns. 
 
This report identifies five projects including a rail station, a strategic multi-use trail 
and three highway schemes, with associated pedestrian/cycle improvements aimed 
at reducing the impact of traffic on sensitive residential areas and town centres. 
Each scheme will demonstrate a net gain in biodiversity, a reduction in carbon and 
air quality improvements. The total cost of the programme is approximately £92m 
which includes £74.3m in capital grant, £12m from other contributions and a 
contribution of £5.7m from Devon County Council. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



2. Introduction 
 
The Government’s Levelling Up Fund was announced at the 2020 Spending Review 
to support communities in order to regenerate a town centres, enable investment in 
cultural facilities or upgrade local transport infrastructure. The LUF will focus on 
capital investment in local infrastructure thereby building on and consolidating prior 
programmes. It will have a visible, tangible impact on people and places, and 
support economic recovery. In doing so, it will also create opportunity across the 
country, prioritising bids that invest in regeneration and growth in places in need and 
areas of low productivity and connectivity. 
 
The eligibility is complex. The Government has categorised all authorities based on 
the need for economic recovery and growth; improved transport connectivity and 
regeneration. The table below shows the categories for Districts in Devon, with the 
guidance stating that preference will be given to bids from higher priority areas. Bids 
from category 2 or 3 places will still be considered for funding on their merits of 
deliverability, value for money and strategic fit. 
 

District Authority Assessed Category of Need 

Torridge 1 – High need 

Mid Devon 2 – Medium need 

West Devon 2 – Medium need 

East Devon 3 – Low need 

Exeter 3 – Low need 

North Devon 3 – Low need 

South Hams 3 – Low need 

Teignbridge 3 – Low need 

 
Members of Parliament are allowed to back one bid that they see as a priority. 
There are other criteria, but it works out that each District Council and the County 
Council can submit one bid as long as it is supported/prioritised by the MP. 
 
Where the MPs are supporting District Council bids we have been working closely 
with the Districts to help them develop their proposals, where there are transport 
related elements. The County Council can only bid for one transport scheme. 
Schemes need to be deliverable by March 2024. 

3. Proposal 
 
Okehampton 
 
Working with West Devon Borough Council they will submit a bid for a West Devon 
Transport Hub in Okehampton. The transport hub will include a new rail station 
close to the emerging development and the junction off the A30 to the east of 
Okehampton. The transport hub will enable the best use of the new rail connection 
to Exeter, which is planned to start operating by the end of this year. Devon 
currently owns the necessary land. The hub will include facilities for bus 
connections, cycle facilities and electric vehicle charging at the car park. The aim is 
to provide an interchange for Okehampton and the rural hinterland stretching up to 
Holsworthy, Hatherleigh and North Cornwall, which currently has poor connectivity 
to the national rail network. 
  

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



 
Cullompton 
 
Working with Mid Devon District Council they will submit a bid for Cullompton Town 
Centre Relief Road (CTCRR). The scheme recently received planning permission. 
CTCRR will enable traffic to be removed from the High Street therefore improving air 
quality and enabling further regeneration of the historic core of Cullompton. Mid 
Devon District Council have secured £10 millions in funding from the government’s 
Housing Infrastructure Fund, but it is insufficient taking into account the high cost of 
land acquisition, mitigation work related to relocation of sports facilities, 
pedestrian/cycle facilities and construction costs. Whilst the District has been 
successful in its bid for HIF funding, it may not be recognised under the LUF as local 
match. DCC are therefore contributing match funding to support this scheme. 
 
Exmouth 
 
Working with East Devon District Council they will submit a package bid which 
includes the Dinan Way extension. Dinan Way currently forms a partial ring road 
around Exmouth, but it lacks the final connection to the A376. As a result, traffic 
from Dinan Way has to use unsuitable residential roads to access the A376 main 
road to Exeter and the M5. Furthermore, goods vehicles accessing the Liverton 
Business Park, surrounding employment & retail area and the road to Budleigh 
Salterton are signed to travel through residential areas and past the school on the 
periphery of the town centre. The Dinan Way extension proposals, which secured 
planning permission in 2017, will provide an improved pedestrian/cycle connection 
to the Exe Estuary multi-use trail and has potential for better bus services to Exeter. 
 
This will form part of a wider bid covering Exmouth, with other proposals focusing on 
the regeneration of the town centre. East Devon District Council are developing a 
number of interventions utilising district owned land to enhance the existing town 
centre assets. This could include new mobility opportunities, better accessibility and 
wayfinding and leisure and cultural attractions. Together with the Dinan Way 
extension scheme, this will form a package enhancing Exmouth as a destination. 
 
Teign Estuary Trail 
 
Working with Teignbridge District Council they will submit a bid for the Teign Estuary 
Trail. Development work on the trail is progressing well with a massively positive 
response to the consultation. A planning application is due to be submitted 
imminently. A scheme with Planning Permission, associated mitigation and costs 
estimates would demonstrate it is deliverable therefore it is proposed that the 
scheme will not be included in the first tranche of LUF bids. Teignbridge are also 
looking at other schemes to link cycle and pedestrian facilities with the new multi-
use trail. 
 
Lee Mill 
 
Devon County Council will submit a bid for a new Lee Mill eastbound slip road, a 
bus gate on the existing A38 slip road and improvements for cyclists/pedestrians. 
The evolution of Lee Mill has resulted in substantial development which is accessed 
off the A38 from a junction layout which lacks a conventional full all-movements 
junction. In particular, the eastbound off-slip utilises an urban features road with 
HGVs serving the large industrial estate on the eastern edge of the settlement 
passing close to residential properties with associated air and noise pollution. Land 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



is available for the replacement A38 eastbound off-slip which would enable traffic to 
be removed from the central area of Lee Mill village.  The consultation demonstrated 
very strong support for the scheme. In order to ensure existing facilities for public 
transport are maintained a bus gate will be introduced on the existing slip road. A 
scheme with Planning Permission, associated mitigation and costs estimates would 
demonstrate it is deliverable therefore it is possible that the scheme will not be 
included in the first tranche of LUF bids. 

4. Options/Alternatives 
 
Numerous discussion and consultations have taken place with District Councils and 
MPs in the development of this major programme of works and some District 
Councils are also preparing other, non-transport bids. The proposed programme is 
ambitious and deemed deliverable. 
 
There will be future rounds of funding; however, it would be advantageous to gain 
the earliest decision in order to progress land negotiations and design to increase 
chances of deliverability by March 2024. 

5. Consultations 
 
Various consultations have taken place on every scheme at the appropriate level. All 
schemes have a high level of support. 

6. Financial Considerations 
 
The funding from the LUF is limited to £20m per scheme unless there is an 
exceptional case. There is an expectation from Government that there will be a local 
contribution of at least 10%. The schemes identified in the report all have strong 
transport element therefore it is recommended that the County Council make a 
substantial financial contribution, as shown below: 
 

Scheme DCC 
Contribution 

£m 

District 
Council 

Contribution 
£m 

Levelling 
Up Fund 

Bid 
£m 

Total 
Cost 
£m 

Okehampton – new rail 
station & transport hub 

1.2 0 10.8 12 

Cullompton - Town Centre 
Relief Road 

1 10 14 25 

Exmouth - Completion of 
Dinan Way and Town Centre 
improvements 

1 1 18 20 

Teign Estuary Trail 1 1 18 20 

Lee Mill – Slip road, bus gate 
and ped/cycle improvements  

1.5 0 13.5 15 

Total 5.7 12 74.3 92 

 
District Council contributions are expected to come from developer contributions, 
with the exception that Mid Devon have secured an existing allocation from the 
Government’s Housing Infrastructure Fund. The contribution from Devon County 
Council would be funded from internal borrowing, resulting in an annual repayment 
charge to revenue of approximately £240,000. The Capital Strategy for 2021/22 
suggests that this level of new internal borrowing is currently affordable. However, 

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



all new future internal borrowing will be kept under review and will only be submitted 
for approval where cashflow allows. 
 
In term of revenue implications There will be a small three-year cost for 
Okehampton Station maintenance and a cost for the car park maintenance. It is 
planned that this will be coved by the car park charges. 
 
The Teign Estuary Trail is a new asset that will incur an additional maintenance 
cost. The design will look at the whole life cost of the scheme aiming to use 
materials that minimise ongoing maintenance liabilities. 
 
Cullompton, Exmouth, and Lee Mill add small sections of additional road length and 
will reduce traffic flows on other roads. There will a slight increase in overall 
maintenance costs. 

7. Legal Considerations 
 
There are no specific legal considerations although funding agreements will have to 
be established with the District Council where they are the lead authority. 

8. Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change) 
 
All the schemes will have a valid permission which will demonstrate a net gain in 
biodiversity, a reduction in carbon and air quality improvements. There is a wide 
range of schemes including a rail station, two strategic multi-use trails and highway 
schemes aimed at reducing the impact of traffic on sensitive residential areas and 
town centres. 

9. Equality Considerations 
 
Where relevant to the decision, the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty 
requires decision makers to give due regard to the need to: 
 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct; 

 advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 
account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and  

 foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 
understanding. 

 
Taking account of age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), 
gender and gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women/ 
new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage/civil partnership status in coming to a 
decision, a decision maker may also consider other relevant factors such as caring 
responsibilities, rural isolation or socio-economic disadvantage. 
 
This will be achieved, for example, through completing a full Equality Impact Needs 
Assessment / Impact Assessment or other form of options/project management 
appraisal that achieves the same objective.  
 
Impact Assessments have either previously been prepared or are in the process of 
being developed and will be reviewed as bids are advanced. Successful schemes 
will be subject to a further Cabinet report and the inclusion of an Impact 
Assessment.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



12. Summary 
 
It is recommended that each of the above schemes is progressed to submission of a 
bid for the Levelling Up Fund capital grant on 18 June 2021, with the exception of 
the Teign Estuary Trail and potentially Lee Mill which will be included in the next 
Tranche of bids. 
 
Dave Black 
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment 
 
Electoral Divisions: All 
 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Environment and Transport: Councillor 
Andrea Davis 
Cabinet Member for Highway Management: Councillor Stuart Hughes 

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers 
 
Contact for Enquiries:  Dave Black  
Tel No:  01392 383000 
Room:  County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter EX2 4QD 
 
Background Paper             Date       File Reference 
 
Nil 
 
Bid into Government Levelling Up Fund - Final 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



CSO/21/10 
Cabinet  

9 June 2021 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Report of the County Solicitor 
 
Recommendation: that consideration be given to any recommendations to be made to 
the County Council in respect of the Notice of Motion set out hereunder having regard to 
the relevant factual briefing/background papers and any other representations made to 
the Cabinet. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
The Notice of Motion submitted to the County Council by the Councillor shown below 
have been referred to the Cabinet in accordance with Standing Order 8(2) - for 
consideration, reference to another committee or to make a recommendation back to the 
Council.   
 
A factual ‘Briefing Note/Position Statement’ prepared by the relevant Chief Officer and / 
or Head of Service is also included, to facilitate the Cabinet’s discussion of each Notice 
of Motion.  
 

(a) Saving Precious National Parks (Councillor Connett) 

 
Our precious National Parks, including Dartmoor and Exmoor, are loved by 
millions and used by many thousands of people. 

 
The LOCAL Park Authorities comprise LOCAL representatives who know and 
serve the community and keep LOCAL oversight of Dartmoor National Park and 
Exmoor National Park. 

 
Government is understood to be considering setting up a National Landscape 
Service which would centralise services under one, nationally run, new 
organisation. 

 
A National Landscapes Service that effectively replaces individual National Park 
Authorities would not be a positive reform: 

 

        It is contrary to the Government’s ‘levelling-up’ agenda which involves 
government decentralising power and working more directly with local partners 
and communities. 

 

       The 2019 Conservative Party Manifesto stated that “the days of Whitehall knows 
best are over” (p.26) and pledged to give communities of all sizes far more 
control. This Council questions how a centralist National Landscapes Service 
would achieve this. 

 

       The move is contrary to international good practice in the management of 
protected landscapes which emphasises the importance of management being 
undertaken with and through local people and mainly for and by them. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 

       Locally run and locally managed National Parks are able to respond in the most 
appropriate way to their own unique qualities and without the burden and red-
tape of national management. 

 
Therefore, this Council urges Government not to proceed with a National 
Landscape Service or to take any step which will remove local engagement and 
involvement in our precious national parks and Council instructs the Chief 
Executive to write urgently to the Prime Minister and local Members of Parliament 
serving Devon and Somerset setting out our support for our local National Parks. 

Briefing Note / Position Statement from the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Planning  

  
This precise issue was considered by Cabinet at its meeting of 14 April in 
response to a question from Cllr Hannaford.  In response, it was noted that there 
is no government proposal to merge all National Park Authorities.  However, it 
was recognised that there has been media coverage of a leaked report which 
referred to the consideration being given by Defra to the possible role and 
structure of a new National Landscape Service.  The establishment of this sort of 
service was one of the recommendations made through the Landscapes Review 
which was led by Julian Glover at the request of the (then) Secretary of State for 
the Environment, the Final Report of which was published in September 
2019.  This addressed a very wide range of issues relating to both National Parks 
and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), including specific 
recommendations relating to their governance.  Devon County Council submitted 
evidence at the time of the Review and met directly with one of its panel 
members. 

  
The government response to this Landscapes Review is keenly 
anticipated.  Whilst assumed that the creation of a National Landscape Service is 
likely to be announced, there is no certainty about its role and composition and the 
corresponding implications for the governance of our National Parks and 
AONBs.  However, in response to a supplementary question at the meeting, it was 
confirmed by the Cabinet Member that any recommended merger of National 
Parks would be opposed. 

  
Since that Cabinet meeting, the same issue was raised through a meeting of the 
Team Devon (Leaders and Chief Executives) grouping in late April.  This resulted 
in letters being sent by the Council Leader, on behalf of Team Devon, to the 
Secretary of State for the Environment and all Devon MPs outlining this 
concern.  These letters stated: 

  
“All of Devon’s local authorities were alarmed to read recent media reports 
referring to the consideration being given by the Department for Environment, 
Food & Rural Affairs to the possible role and structure of a new National 
Landscape Service. We share grave concerns about the potential impact that this 
might have on the management of Devon’s unique series of nationally protected 
landscapes. The Dartmoor and Exmoor National Park Authorities, together with 
our five Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty are instrumental in conserving, 
enhancing and promoting Devon’s natural environment and the social and 
economic benefits that they provide. The localised management of each of those 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



areas is critical to their success and we would strongly oppose any centralised 
merger of their functions. 

  
When the Government responds to the 2019 Landscapes Review, I hope that you 
can urge it to make a positive contribution to the ability of National Parks and 
AONBs to continue their important work and retain their autonomy. A National 
Landscape Service which brought together and strengthened existing national 
support for landscape conservation and the protection of our natural environment 
could be of great benefit. Such a Service could provide a strong national voice for 
all protected landscapes, assist in the future development of policy and guidance 
(alongside other relevant Defra-funded agencies) and promote collaboration and 
consistency in the delivery of common functions. Such increased national support, 
coupled with local autonomy in governance and operation, provides the most 
effective model to improve upon the fantastic work which is already led and 
managed in Devon.” 

 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
This Report has no specific equality, environmental, legal or public health implications 
that will not be assessed and appropriate safeguards and/or actions taken or included 
within the detailed policies or practices or requirements in relation to the matters referred 
to herein.  

 JAN SHADBOLT  
 

[Electoral Divisions:  All] 
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers 
Contact for Enquiries:  K Strahan  
Tel No:  01392 382264  Room: G31  
Background Paper             Date       File Reference 
NIL 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9





 
 

 

 
 

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL/CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 

 
 

 

In line with the public’s general rights of access to information and the promotion of transparency in the way which decisions are taken by or on 
behalf of the Council, Devon County Council produces a Forward Plan of any Key Decisions to be taken by the Cabinet and any Framework 
Decisions to be made by the County Council. The Plan normally covers a period of a minimum of four months from the date of publication and 
is updated every month. 
 
The County Council has defined key decisions as those which by reason of their strategic, political or financial significance or which will have a 
significant effect on communities in more than one division are to be made by the Cabinet or a Committee of the Cabinet.  Framework 
Decisions are those decisions, which, in line with Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution must be made by the County Council.  
 
The Cabinet will, at every meeting, review its forthcoming business and determine which items are to be defined as key decisions and the date 
of the meeting at which every such decision is to be made, indicating what documents will be considered and where, in line with legislation, any 
item may exceptionally be considered in the absence of the press and public. The revised Plan will be published with the papers for the 
meeting. Where possible the Council will attempt to keep to the dates shown in the Plan. It is possible that on occasion may need to be rescheduled. 
Please ensure therefore that you refer to the most up to date Plan. 
 
Click to see an up to date version of the Forward Plan on the Council’s web site at any time. 

 
Also see the website for Copies of Agenda and Reports of the Cabinet or other Committees of the County Council referred to in this Plan  

 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 12

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0&bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

 

 

FORWARD PLAN 
 
All items listed in this Forward Plan will be discussed in public at the relevant meeting, unless otherwise indicated for the 
reasons shown 
 
Any person who wishes to make representations to the Council/Cabinet about (a) any of the matters proposed for consideration 
in respect of which a decision is to be made or (b) whether or not they are to be discussed in public or private, as outlined 
below, may do so in writing, before the designated Date for Decision shown, to The Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat, 
County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD or by email to: members.services@devon.gov.uk 
 
 

 

PART A - KEY DECISIONS 
(To Be made by the Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation*
* 

Documents to be considered in 
making decision 

County Council 
Electoral 
Division(s) 
affected by 
matter 

 

 Regular / Annual Matters for 
Consideration 

 

9 June 
2021 

Highway Maintenance Capital 
Budget and On Street Parking 
Account: Progress on the 
2020/21 Capital Programme and 
Proposals for the 21/22 
Programmes 
 

N/A  Report of the Chief Officer for 
Highways, Infrastructure Development 
and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:members.services@devon.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

   

14 July 
2021 

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Outturn for 20/21 
 

  Report of the County Treasurer  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

8 
September 
2021 

Market Position Statement 
(Adults) - Annual Update 
 

  Report of the Joint Associate Director 
of Commissioning  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

8 
December 
2021 

Target Budget and Service 
Targets for 2022/2023 
 

  Report of the County Treasurer  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

9 March 
2022 

Flood Risk Management Action 
Plan 2022/2023 
Update on the current year's 
programme and approval of 
schemes and proposed 
investment in 2022/2023 

Liaison 
through 
Devon 
Operation 
Drainage 
Group 

All other 
Risk 
Managemen
t Authorities 

Report of the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Environment  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

11 
February 
2022 

Admission Arrangements and 
Education Travel Review: 
Approval to admission 
arrangements for subsequent 
academic year 
 

School / 
Academies 
/Members 

Online Report of the Head of Education and 
Learning  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

 Specific Matters for 
Consideration 

 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

9 June 
2021 

Government Levelling Up Fund 
Tranche1 Bids – Identify 
Schemes to Bid for and Funding 
Commitments 
 

To be agreed 
– specific for 
each scheme 
(Possible 
Electoral 
Divisions of 
Okehampton 
Rural, 
Exmouth, 
and 
Cullompton 
& Bradninch) 

To be 
agreed 

Report of the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Environment  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

14 July 
2021 

Recruitment & Retention 
Business Case (Children's Social 
Work) 
 

TBC TBC Report of the Chief Officer for 
Children's Services  outlining all 
relevant considerations, information 
and material including any equality and 
/ or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

14 July 
2021 

Education and Inclusion Traded 
Services (BABCOCK) 
 

  Report of the Head of Education and 
Learning  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

14 July 
2021 

Bideford Heritage Railway 
Centre:  Agreement of Leases 
 

Bideford 
Railway 
Heritage 
Centre 
Community 
Interest 
Company 

Written 
Correspond
ence and 
Meetings 

Report of the Chief Officer for 
Highways, Infrastructure Development 
and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

Bideford East 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

14 July 
2021 

A3121 Safer Roads Fund – 
Kitterford Cross Roundabout 
Improvement - Scheme for 
Approval 
 

Public, 
landowners, 
stakeholders 

Online and 
corresponde
nce 

Report of the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Environment  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

South Brent & 
Yealmpton 

14 July 
2021 

Dawlish – Secmaton Lane to 
Exeter Road Link – Progress 
Planning, Design, Land 
Acquisition and Construction 
 

Land 
Owners, 
Public & Key 
Stakeholders 

Public 
Consultation 

Report of the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Environment  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

Dawlish 

14 July 
2021 

Community Renewal Fund – 
Approval of approach 
 

Devon wide 
stakeholders 
– 
businesses, 
voluntary 
and 
community 
sector, 
district 
councils, 
further 
education 
providers 

Webinars, 
Website, 
Briefings 

Report of the Head of Economy, 
Enterprise and Skills  outlining all 
relevant considerations, information 
and material including any equality and 
/ or impact assessments, as necessary. 
 
Prospectus 

All Divisions 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

8 
September 
2021 

Approval of the Resource and 
Waste Management Strategy for 
Devon and Torbay 
 

Cabinet, 
County 
Councillors, 
Public, 
Devon 
District and 
Unitary 
Authorities, 
Town and 
Parish 
Councils, 
Community 
Groups; 
Cornwall 
Council, 
Somerset 
County 
Council, 
Dorset 
Council 

Cabinet 
report, 
Online 
Public 
Consultation
, Press 
Release, 
Emails, 
Social 
Media via 
RecycleDev
on 

Report of the Chief Officer for 
Highways, Infrastructure Development 
and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

8 
September 
2021 

Domestic Abuse Act – new 
statutory duties 
To agree arrangements for the 
Council to discharge new 
statutory duties included in the 
Domestic Abuse Bill 2021. 

 tier 2 local 
authorities 
in Devon 
(duty to 
collaborate) 

Report of the Director of Public Health  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

8 
September 
2021 

Proposal of a New Integrated 
Joint Venture from Norse SW’ 
(for Property Consultancy & 
Facilities Management) 
 

Corporate 
Infrastructure 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 
Scrutiny 

TBC Report of the Head of Digital 
Transformation and Business Support  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

10 
November 
2021 

Government Housing 
Infrastructure Scheme at 
Cullompton:  Approval of legal 
agreements with District 
Councils, and authority to 
progress to construction 
 

Statutory and 
Public 

Undertaken 
as part of 
Local Plan 
and 
Planning 
Application. 

Report of the Head of Planning, 
Transportation and Environment  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

Dawlish; 
Cullompton & 
Bradninch 

13 
October 
2021 

Property consultancy and 
facilities management service 
model 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

n/a Report of the Head of Digital 
Transformation and Business Support  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

10 
November 
2021 

Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment - Annual Return 
To consider the annual childcare 
sufficiency assessment 

  Report of the Head of Education and 
Learning  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

PART B -FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 
(Requiring approval of the County Council) 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation** 

Documents to be considered in 
making decision 

County Council 
Electoral 
Division(s) 
affected by 
matter 

 

19 
January 
2022 
 
17 
February 
2022 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
 

Appointments
, 
Remuneratio
n and Chief 
Officer 
Conduct 
Committee 

Meetings Report of the County Solicitor 
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including 
any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

11 
February 
2022 
 
17 
February 
2022 

Revenue Budget, Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2022/2023 - 
2025/2026 and the Capital 
Programme for 2022/2023 - 
2026/2027 
 

Consultation 
with Trade 
Unions / 
Business and 
those that 
champion the 
interests of 
older people 
and the 
voluntary 
sector. 
Scrutiny 
Committees 

Meetings Report of the County Treasurer 
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including 
any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

PART C - OTHER MATTERS 
(i.e. Neither Key Nor Framework Decisions) 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation** 

Documents to be considered in 
making decision 

County Council 
Electoral 
Division(s) 
affected by 
matter 

 

 Regular / Annual Matters for 
Consideration 

 

Between  
9 June 
2021 and 
8 May 
2025 

Standing Items, as necessary 
(Minutes, References from 
Committees, Notices of Motion 
and Registers of Delegated or 
Urgent Decisions) 
 

As necessary  Report of the TBC  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

Between  
9 June 
2021 and 
8 May 
2025 
 
Between  
9 June 
2021 and 
8 May 
2025 

Standing Items, as necessary 
(Minutes, References from 
Committees, Notices of Motion 
and Registers of Delegated or 
Urgent Decisions) 
[NB:  Items relating to the letting or 
occupancy of individual holdings  may 
contain information about, or which is likely 
to reveal the identity of, an applicant for a 
holding and about the financial and business 
affairs of the Council and any prospective or 
existing tenant that may need to be 
discussed in the absence of the press and 
public] 

To be considered 
at the Farms 
Estates 
Committee, 
including any 
advice of the 
Council’s Agents 
NPS South West 
Ltd 

 Report of the Head of Digital 
Transformation and Business Support, 
County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

 
 

   

14 July 
2021 

Public Health Annual Report 
2020/2021 
 

  Report of the Director of Public Health  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

14 July 
2021 

Treasury Management 
Stewardship Outturn Report 
 

Corporate 
Infrastructure 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

n/a Report of the County Treasurer  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

13 
October 
2021 

Devon Safeguarding Adults 
Annual Report 
 

  Report of the Chair of the Board  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

8 
December 
2021 

Treasury Management Mid Year 
Report 
 

Corporate 
Infrastructure 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Committee Report of the County Treasurer  
outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, 
as necessary. 

All Divisions 

 Specific Matters for 
Consideration 

 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 12


	Agenda
	7 County Road Highway Maintenance - Capital Budget and Progress on 2020/21 Schemes and Proposals for the 2021/22 Programmes and the On-street Parking Account 2021/22
	8 Bid into Government Levelling Up Fund
	9 Notice of Motion
	12 Forward Plan

